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DULVERTON housing

Cottagers generally had a hard life especially the women who brought up many children with little money and without running water or sanitation. Several had to cope with husbands who drank. Cottages were often crowded, open fires were still used for cooking and boiling clothes, children were often left to mind younger children or help with the cooking, which sometimes caused terrible accidents. In Dulverton cottagers took their Sunday dinner to be cooked in a baker’s oven for 1d. Water came from wells or streams. In Dulverton many relied on river water, contaminated with sewage, blood and offal from slaughtering pigs and chickens, and other waste. Many houses in Lady Street bordering the mill leet still have steps down to the leet for drawing water. 

There had been little expansion of Dulverton town in the 19th century and most new housing was in back courts off the existing streets such as Back Lamb, behind the Lamb inn, which still exists. Some of these cottages were substantial and with the addition of modern services, and sometimes the putting of two houses into one, they are still occupied. The particularly bad examples have been cleared away. The most notorious was the ironically named Castle Court. The court consisted of twelve tiny 3 or 4-room cottages, fourteen in 1841, built around a small courtyard with a pump and three or four privies, across the mill leet from the town or higher mills. They were accessed through an alleyway behind the Bridge Inn off Bridge Street. In 1851 71 people lived in the court. Between 1891 and 1901 at least one of the houses was subdivided and many had only 3 rooms. A total of 56 people lived in 14 houses; most of the adults were labourers or charwomen.

Dulverton was short of accommodation by the 1930s. The population had increased by 200 between 1921 and 1931, a large increase for a small town. Railway carriages were proposed as accommodation. In 1934 a scheme was drawn up to replace 55 unfit houses but only c. 40 new 3-bedroom houses were planned. Battleton and Brushford were used as the site of new homes but a few were built on the old Castle Court site. It was clear that new housing could not be provided without expanding the town.

After the war 84 dwellings were built in new streets laid out the south-east of the town in an area where a lot of private housing was also built. Housing was also provided for the elderly and more houses were built by the local authority between 1960 and 1990, mainly in the south-east. Many houses were bought by tenants under the government’s Right to Buy scheme. The rest were sold to a housing association in 1999.
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�       SRO, D/R/du 3/1/6—7, 24/1/121; ibid. Exmoor Oral Archive [somerset.gov.uk/archives/Exmoor].
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